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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
The following items are applicable to this modification:    
        SUMMARY OF CHANGES (REVISED) 
 
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
        RFIS 156-185 RESPONSES 

 

Q156: REFERENCE: Attachment J-1503010-02 

QUESTION: In Amendment 5, question 22, the Government says that window cleaning frequencies can be found in 
the attachment J-1503010-02.  This attachment is in the RFP.  But it only defines what the service levels are.  It does 
not tell us what service level the windows will be cleaned for this contract. 

A156:  Refer to Section J-1503010-03 – Janitorial Inventories for Building 27130 and DSS Annex Levels 00 – 03 
and see Column “TYPE OF SERVICE CLASS” each area will have the Class of Service A, B, C and D then refer 
back to Attachment J-1503010 -02 – Service Classes  then see Spec Item 3.1.1.5 – Interior Window Cleaning and 
Spec Item 3.1.1.6 – Exterior Window Cleaning and once you see the Service Class for the area that you will be 
performing your services you will see the frequencies for each of the service levels. 

Q157: For the submitting process to solicitation N40080-13-R-2090 at Quantico; are we allowed to also hand 
delivers our proposal by the due date or must it be FedEx? 

A157: See Section L.L4.b. Proposals shall be sent via FedEx.  No hand-delivered proposals are allowed. 

Q158: Reference PWS Oil/Water Separator Services and Refuse Collection and Disposal Services. Is backfill 
required?  If so is compaction testing required? For the hazardous soil what is the contaminant?  Disposal 
technologies vary greatly depending on the contaminant and consequently disposal costs vary greatly as well. 
 
A158: Refer to Section 1800000 – Environmental – Spec Item 4.1 – Oil/Water Separator Maintenance – 
Performance Objective in regards Hazardous and non-hazardous and contaminated soil at Building 
27130/MDIA/Russell Knox, Marine Corps Base, Quantico, Virginia.  In reference to Refuse Collection and 
Disposal Services – Refer to Section 1503030 – C – 2.1.6 –Hazardous Waste along with 2.1.12 – Sludge. 
 
Q159: I’d like to bring something to your attention regarding the proposal for RKB.  Buried way up in Section F – 
Deliverables it says that Planned Pesticide Use Sheets are to be submitted with the proposal.  Are you all sure you 
want this with our proposal?  It could end up being hundreds of pages long and would automatically throw our 
proposal over the page limit.  Also, this item is typically something that is provided to the KO and COR after award, 
not with a proposal.  Please advise contractors on what to do.   
 
A159: Section F is hereby amended to read that Planned Pesticide Use Sheets are due within 15 days of contract 
award for review and approval.  Any proposed changes in pesticide usage shall be submitted for KO approval at 
least 5 business days in advance of Pesticide use. 
 
Q160: The data in attachment 0200000 (Fire Extinguisher inventory) does not provide the counts just some charts 
with green/yellow boxes. Could not find any attachment that had the sprinkler systems (wet, dry, pre-action 
systems)? We are unable to participate until further data is provided. I do know there are Fire/Sprinkler inspection 
reports with all the counts, question is they available? 
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A160: See revised Section J - 1502000 - Facility Investment - Section J-1502000-15 Fire Extinguishers Inventory - 
Including Annex and Parking Garage. 

Q161: 1503050 – Grounds Maintenance, Section 3.1 states “Improved grounds are identified in J-1503050-03, Site 
Maps.” We cannot read the map provided in J-1503050-03. Can you please provide offerors with an improved map 
where we can read the text? 

A161: Currently there is not another map; however it can be enlarged when it is opened on the computer that will 
help seeing it more in depth. 

Q162: 1503050 – Grounds Maintenance, Section 3.1 states “All clippings, excluding grass clippings, and Trimmings 
shall be removed in a timely manner to promote a neat and healthy appearance”. Is there a site dump or compost 
heap on site? If not, where is the closest site dump or compost heap? 

A162: Spec Item 3.1 Improved Grounds and Spec Item 3.1.3 Debris Removal, there is no area on base.  The 
Contractor is required to remove debris in a timely manner.    

Q163: 1503050 – Grounds Maintenance, Section 3.1.1.2, Edging, states “Edge where grass meets any concrete or 
asphalt surface, where grass abuts planter beds, or wherever needed to maintain grass delineation”. How many 
square feet of grass meets concrete? 

A163: Refer to Section 1503050 – Grounds Maintenance Spec Item 3.1.1.2 – Edging – On Performance and related 
information along with Section J -1503050-02 – Table of Contents – Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments – 
Grounds Maintenance Inventory – MDIA Edging Linear Feet under Improved Grounds which is 32,147 lf  should 
help with your question along with the site visit if you attended and saw the locations. 

Q164: How many square feet of grass meets asphalt? 

A164: Please refer to A163 for assistance and look under the inventory for Turf Sq. Ft. 

Q165: How many square feet of grass abut planter beds? 

A165: Please refer to A163 and 164 for Reference. 

Q166: 1503050 – Grounds Maintenance, Section 3.1.4, Shrub & Hedge Maintenance, states “The Contractor shall 
trim shrubs and hedges to maintain intended Natural plant shape and size appearance and to prevent interference 
with pedestrians, vehicular traffic, and Building encroachment. How many shrubs and hedges are on site? The 
attachment J-1503050-03 does not show any. 

A166:  Refer to Section J-1503050-02 Grounds Maintenance Inventory under Shrub/Plant Maintenance and Tree 
Maintenance where it shows what is included. 

Q167: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services. How many restrooms are located on site? The map only has one 
restroom included. 

A167: Refer to Section J-1503010-Janitorial –Attachment J-1503010-03-MDIA B-27130 Levels 00-03 Inventory 
along with Section J-1503010-03-Janitorial Inventory-MDIA Building –DSS/Annex Inventory which shows 
Levels/Floors, Room Numbers, Square Feet, Frequency, flooring, type of service (Matrix), and defines what the 
space is like, restrooms, office, etc. 

Q168: How many toilets in men’s’ restrooms are located on site? 

A168: Refer to Section J – 1503010 – Janitorial J-1503010-03 Inventories. 

Q169: How many urinals in men’s’ restrooms are located on site? 

A169: Refer to Section J – 1503010 – Janitorial J-1503010-03 Inventories 
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Q170: How many toilets in women’s’ restrooms are located on site? 

A170: Refer to Section J – 1503010 – Janitorial J-1503010-03 Inventories 

Q171: How many sinks in men’s restrooms are located on site? 

A171: Refer to Section J – 1503010 – Janitorial J-1503010-03 Inventories 

Q172: How many sinks in women’s restrooms are located on site? 

A172: Refer to Section J – 1503010 – Janitorial J-1503010-03 Inventories 

 
Q173: How many water fountains are located on site? 

A173: Refer to Section 1503010 – Section C – Janitorial – Spec Item 3.1.1.3 Special Cleaning along with Section J 
– 1503010-03 – Janitorial Inventories showing fountains, sinks, kitchens, and Coffee messes. Inventories are by 
square footage not by each fountain, sinks, etc. 

Q174: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.1.1 Emptying Waste Containers. 

How many waste containers are located on site? 

A174: Refer to Section C – 1503010 – Spec Item – 3.1.1.1– Emptying Waste Containers along with Section 
1503010-03 – Janitorial Inventories –Which will show the possibility of where trash cans might be located.  There 
isn’t an inventory showing the individual cans by number only areas that Janitorial service is required and that 
covers doing 3.1.1.1.  

Q175: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.1.5 Interior Window Cleaning. 

How many windows are located on site? 

A175: Refer to Section J – 1502000-13 – Facility Investment -Windows Inventory.  The inventory gives you the 
following – Room number, Space Description, Number of Windows, Window Type and Dimensions.  

Q176: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.1.6 Exterior Window Cleaning. 

How many windows are located on site? 

A176: Refer to Section J – 1502000-13 – Facility Investment -Windows Inventory.  The inventory gives you the 
following – Room number, Space Description, Number of Windows, Window Type and Dimensions 

Q177: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.1.8 Window Blinds Cleaning. 

Does every window have blinds? 

A177: Yes there are blinds every window however, there is no individual inventory for the blinds. 

Q178: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.2.3 Cleaning Walk-off Mats. 

How many walk-off mats are located on site? 

A178: There isn’t an inventory for walk off mats. The Contractor shall service the mats and the surface below the 
mats to ensure clean where ever you find mats while cleaning the floor surfaces. It’s approximately 12 walk off 
mats, however as stated above there is no inventory and the count can change for some reason or another. 

Q179: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.4.2 states: “The Contractor shall empty waste 
containers, excluding dumpsters, located in the perimeter area as shown in J-1503010-01along with J1503010-03 
and including Parking Garage areas near Elevators on each level they are located”.  
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It is unclear how many waste containers are located in the perimeter including Parking Garage areas near Elevators 
using the attachments referenced above. How many waste containers are located in the perimeter including Parking 
Garage areas near Elevators? 

A179: No inventory available for number amount of the Waste Containers around Perimeter at this time unless you 
were at the site visit and saw their locations or Refer to Section J-1503010-03 – Janitorial Inventory- 
DSS/Annex/Parking Garage – all levels emptying Perimeter Waste containers around Annex and Parking Garage – 
Bi -Weekly 

Q180: Reference 1503010 – Janitorial Services, Section 3.1.3.3 states: “Work for the restroom/locker room @ 
Fitness Center is to be completed twice (2x’s) daily per Contractor’s schedule. As shown in J1503010-02 and in 
J1503010-03”.  

It is unclear the Contractor’s schedule based off the provided maps. It appears the provided maps do not contain 
sufficient information. Will the Government please provide us with new maps that accurately reflect the site? 

A180: Refer to Section J-1503010 – Janitorial Services – Attachment J-1503010-02 – Service Classes.   Go to Spec 
Item 3.1.3 Restroom Services - 3.1.3.3 - MDIA Fitness Center Locker Room/Restroom - Service Class A – 2 x’s D 
which on the bottom page  - Key – 2x Daily – Two times per day – MDIA – Fitness Center – Locker 
Rooms/Restrooms only. 

Q181: ELIN X001AC has no quantities so, are bidders to leave this ELIN blank or do you want a price per square 
foot for Service Class C cleaning? 

A181: Refer to Q95-Q100. The Contractor does not have square footage under Janitorial Class C or E, however we 
reserved the line item a price is not required. 
  
Q182: ELIN X001AE has no quantities nor is there a Service Class E in the Attachment J-1503010-02 Service Class 
Chart.  Are bidders to leave this ELIN blank?  If not, please inform bidders what goes into this ELIN. 
A182: Yes, Bidders are to leave ELIN Service Class E Restrooms blank customer wants their Restrooms Class A. 
Refer to Section J-1503010-Janitorial – Attachment J-1503010-03 Inventory – MDIA Building 27130 and Section J-
1503010-03 –Janitorial Inventory – MDIA – DSS Annex. 
  
Q183: ELIN X001AG has no frequency nor does the Service Class chart Attachment J-1503010-02 reference any 
frequencies for restrooms under Service Class B.  Are bidders to leave this ELIN blank?  If not, please inform 
bidders what is to be included in the ELIN. 
A183: Yes, Bidders are to leave ELIN Blank for Service Class B – Restrooms you can refer to Q182: along with the 
Inventories Section J-1503010-03 – MDIA and DSS Annex Janitorial Inventory. 
  
Q184: ELIN X001AH is for Service Class E restroom cleaning.  However, the Service Class chart Attachment J-
1503010-02 does not have a Service Class E for restrooms.  The unit of issue for this ELIN is for a man-hour.  Are 
bidders to leave this ELIN blank or are we to place an hourly rate for cleaning a restroom. 
A184: Yes, refer to Q182 and Q183 - bidders are to leave ELIN blank however we reserved the line item. 
  
Q185: The header for the ELIN schedules indicates in the unit price cell that the Government wants a Unit Price per 
Square Foot (yearly).  That can be done when the quantity is provided per square foot.  However, ELINS AK 
through AT are not priced by the square foot.  They are either by the month and/or per each.  Do you want a price 
per square foot (as indicated in the ELIN price sheet header) for ELINS AK through AT or do you want a price per 
the quantity and unit of issue.  If a price per square foot is required, what should bidders use as the square foot 
divider? 

A185: Refer to Section J-1503010 – 03 -Janitorial Inventories for MDIA/Building 27130 and DSS Annex the 
cleaning will be by square foot.  ELINS AK – Section 1503020 - Pest Control, AL – Section 1503030 – Refuse 
Control, AM – Section - 1503050 – Grounds Service, AN – Section 1503060 – Street Sweeping and Snow Removal, 
etc along being Firm Fixed it is a Monthly Cost based on total amount of frequencies  per month but with Janitorial 
it is Square Feet then we can take the footage times the cost per foot.  
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        UPDATED RFIS 65, 73, 74, ETC. 
 

Q65: Can information on warrantees of equipment be provided? 

A65: Yes, refer to Section C – 1502000-Spec Item 3-FFP Work – The Contractor shall maintain all current Facility 
Maintenance data and warranty records in the Technical Library and CMMS (Computerized Maintenance 
Management System) NAVFAC Maximo for Facility Asset Data Management.  Refer also to Section C – 0200000 
– Management and Administration – Spec Item 2.12 – Technical Library – Existing technical library contents, 
including facility drawings, operation and maintenance manuals, warranties, Government publications, record 
drawings and other appropriate material, will  be furnished by the Government either by inventories and other 
documents in the Specification or by the Contractor continually update the library material to ensure materials are 
returned and data integrity is not compromised. 

Q73: Will service request frequency be provided for both MEP and Janitorial? 

A73: Yes, for Janitorial – refer to Section 1503010 – Janitorial Section F-Deliverables and J-1503010 – 03 – MDIA 
Janitorial Inventory – Levels 00-03 including DSS Annex along with Section J-1503010-02 – Service Class. For 
MEP (Mechanical, Electric and Plumbing) refer to Section J-1502000 – Section F – Deliverables – Spec Item 3 – 
3.4 –Schedules. For Facility Investment – refer to Section J- 1502000 -08 – 15 for various inventories for Facility 
Investment.  

Q74: Will the equipment list be provided? 

A74: Yes, for MEP (Mechanical, Electric and Plumbing) refer to Section J-1502000 – Section F – Deliverables – 
Spec Item 3 – 3.4 –Schedules. For Facility Investment – refer to Section J- 1502000 -08 – 15 for various inventories 
for Facility Investment. 

Q88: Reference J-1503050-02, Tree Maintenance, Inventory. We have counted 672 trees…Inventory states 516. 
Please verify quantity. 

A88: Refer to updated Section C 1503050 – Ground Maintenance Spec Item 3.1.6 –Tree Maintenance is NOT 
APPLICABLE.  Table of Contents, Section J – 1503050-01 Service levels, and Section F – Deliveries or 
Performance have been revised.  

Q97: Reference J-0200000-13. Please confirm that the offeror is to price ELINs X001AA through X001AF by SF.  
Typically, recurring work is priced on a monthly basis.  If offeror is to price by SF, is it the Governments intent to 
only pay by SF cleaned? 

A97: to be priced by SF – Note – This was answered through Q95–Q100 and again on Q181-Q185 in more detail. 

Q102: Do the Roof Top Units (RTU’s) have factory filters installed? If not, what are installed and is there a 
proprietary vendor associated with purchasing filters?  

A102:  Refer to Section 1502000 –14 – Master Inventory which list MS-RTU’s with all the information for the 
equipment. 

Q122: Is the Visitor Center, Guard Shack and ADN part of this RFP?  If so, please provide the inventories for these 
buildings? 

A122: Yes, they are included.  Refer to Section 1502000 – All Facility Investment Inventories  from J-1502000-14 
Master Inventory , J-1502000-5 – PVs & UPVs, J-1502000-06 HVAC, J-1502000-07 Plumbing, J-1502000-08 Gen 
Systems, J-1502000-09 UPS, J-1502000-10- Bkflw Prev, J-1502000-12-Electrical, J-1502000-13 Bldg. 
Maintenance and other inventories for fire alarms, lighting.  Section J-1503010 – Janitorial Inventories. 
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Q129: Is the service call count correct for 2014?  The RFP states that during all of 2014 there were only 60 service 
calls?   

A129: A129: Refer to Attachments – J-1502000-04 – Historical Trouble Call Workloads from D]ecember 2014, 
January 2015, and August 2015. 

 
  
 
 
SECTION C - DESCRIPTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS  
 
 
 
The following have been modified:  
        1503050 - GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 
 
1503050 - Grounds Maintenance Table of Content 
Spec Item Title 
1 General Information 
  
2 Management and Administration 
2.1 Definitions and Acronyms 
2.2 Cost Account Code (CAC) Reporting – Not Applicable 
2.3 Personnel 
2.3.1 Certification, Training and Licensing 
2.4 Work Induction 
2.5 Work Coordination 
2.6 Water Management 
2.7 Records and Reports 
  
3 Recurring Work 
3.1 Improved Grounds 
3.1.1 Lawn Care 
3.1.1.1 Mowing and Trimming 
3.1.1.2 Edging 
3.1.2 Irrigation Systems Operation and Maintenance – Not Applicable 
3.1.3 Debris Removal 
3.1.4 Shrub and Hedge Maintenance 
3.1.5 Plant and Bed Maintenance 
3.1.6 Tree Maintenance – Not Applicable 
3.1.7 Storm Drainage Systems 
3.1.8 Green Roof – Not Applicable 
3.2 Semi-improved Grounds 
3.2.1 Grounds Care 
3.2.2 Storm Drainage Systems 
3.3 Unimproved Grounds 
3.3.1 Vegetation Control 
3.3.2 Storm Drainage Systems 
  
4 Non-recurring Work 
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FROM: 

3.1.6 
 
 
 

Tree Maintenance The Contractor shall 
provide tree 
maintenance and 
care intended 
Natural Tree shape 
and size to promote 
tree health and to 
prevent 
interference with 
pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic, and 
structure 
encroachment. 

Tree Maintenance includes: 
Staking, adjustment of ties 
and supports, removal of 
stakes; maintaining watering 
berms for existing plantings; 
fertilization; pruning for 
health and safety, grass 
clearance, seasonal cleanup; 
mulching, removing dead, 
broken, damaged or 
diseased wood, or 
structurally weak limbs, 
branches and fronds; 
removing or pruning 
branches to clear roofs, 
adjacent structures, low 
hanging limbs and fronds 
which encroach onto walks, 
roadways and parking lots. 
 
Pruning shall be 
accomplished by or under 
guidance of a certified 
arborist. 
 
Climbing devices that may 
cause damage to trees shall 
not be used in the 
performance of 
maintenance. 
 
The Contractor shall 
develop and submit a tree 
maintenance schedule. 
 
 

Trees present a healthy 
appearance. 
 
Trees do not encroach 
on structures, 
pedestrian traffic, or 
vehicular traffic. 

 

TO: 

3.1.6 
 
 
Not 
Applicable 
for 
MDIA/Russell 
Knox 
Building 

Tree Maintenance The Contractor shall 
provide tree 
maintenance and 
care intended 
Natural Tree shape 
and size to promote 
tree health and to 
prevent 
interference with 
pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic, 
and structure 

Tree Maintenance includes: 
Staking, adjustment of ties 
and supports, removal of 
stakes; maintaining 
watering berms for existing 
plantings; 
fertilization; pruning for 
health and safety, grass 
clearance, seasonal 
cleanup; mulching, 
removing dead, broken, 
damaged or diseased wood, 

Trees present a 
healthy 
appearance. 
 
Trees do not encroach 
on structures, 
pedestrian traffic, or 
vehicular traffic. 



N40080-13-R-2090 
0008 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 

encroachment. or structurally weak limbs, 
branches and fronds; 
removing or pruning 
branches to clear roofs, 
adjacent structures, low 
hanging limbs and fronds 
which encroach onto walks, 
roadways and parking lots. 
 
Pruning shall be 
accomplished by or under 
guidance of a certified 
arborist. 
 
Climbing devices that may 
cause damage to trees shall 
not be used in the 
performance of 
maintenance. 
 
The Contractor shall 
develop and submit a tree 
maintenance schedule. 
 
 

 
 
 
SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE  
 
 
 
The following have been modified:  
        1503020 - PEST CONTROL 
 
 

FROM: 

1503020/2.3.5 J-1503020-02 Planned Pesticide Use 
Sheets including 
Pesticide Labels and 
Material Safety Data 
Sheets (MSDS) 

With the 
proposal. 

Note: Any 
proposed 

changes in 
pesticide 

usage shall be 
submitted for 
KO approval 

at least 5 
business days 
in advance of 
pesticide use. 

KO 2 1 for each 
pesticide 

per pest as 
required 
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TO: 

1503020/2.3.5 J-1503020-02 Planned Pesticide Use 
Sheets including 
Pesticide Labels and 
Material Safety Data 
Sheets (MSDS) 

Due within 
15 days of 
contract 

award for 
review and 
approval. 
Note: Any 
proposed 

changes in 
pesticide 

usage shall be 
submitted for 
KO approval 

at least 5 
business days 
in advance of 
pesticide use. 

KO 2 1 for each 
pesticide 

per pest as 
required 

 
 
        1503050 – GROUNDS 
 
 
FROM: 

1503050 3.1.6 Tree Maintenance Schedule 1 KO 15 days after 
award/annually 

 

TO: 

1503050 3.1.6 Tree Maintenance Schedule   Not Applicable 
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SECTION J - LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS  
                 
The Table of Contents has changed from:  
  
        Exhibit/Attachment Table of Contents 
 
DOCUMENT TYPE  DESCRIPTION  PAGES  DATE  
Attachment 1  J-1800000 Environmental 

Attachments  
  10-AUG-2015  

Attachment 2  J-1503050 Grounds 
Attachments  

  10-AUG-2015  

Attachment 3  Site Visit Log    11-AUG-2015  
Attachment 4  Pre-proposal Conference 

Slides  
  11-AUG-2015  

Attachment 5  J-1503010-03 Janitorial 
Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 6  J-1502000-13 Light 
Fixtures Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 7  J-1502000-13 Inventory 
Lighting  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 8  J-1502000-13 Door 
Schedule Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

  
        to:  
  
        Exhibit/Attachment Table of Contents 
 
DOCUMENT TYPE  DESCRIPTION  PAGES  DATE  
Attachment 1  J-1800000 Environmental 

Attachments  
  10-AUG-2015  

Attachment 10  J-0200000-13 
ELINS_revised  

  23-SEP-2015  

Attachment 11  J-1502000-04 Dec 2014 
RKB Service Calls  

  25-SEP-2015  

Attachment 12  J-1502000-04 Jan 2015 
RKB Service Calls  

  25-SEP-2015  

Attachment 2  J-1503050 Grounds 
Attachments  

  10-AUG-2015  

Attachment 3  Site Visit Log    11-AUG-2015  
Attachment 4  Pre-proposal Conference 

Slides  
  11-AUG-2015  

Attachment 5  J-1503010-03 Janitorial 
Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 6  J-1502000-13 Light 
Fixtures Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 7  J-1502000-13 Inventory 
Lighting  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 8  J-1502000-13 Door 
Schedule Inventory  

  18-SEP-2015  

Attachment 9  J-1502000-15 Fire 
Extinguishers_revised  

  23-SEP-2015  

  
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 


